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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

Independent Auditor’s Report CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Best Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Best Finance Company Limited (the “Company™) which

comprise the statement of finaneial position as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and the statement of

profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards,

Basis for opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's
Hanitbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN's landbook of Code of Ethies for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters deseribed below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N 1 Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response i
1. Interest Recognition Our ;mdil_;_\ppmm‘h regarding verification of
| The interest income of the company has to be recognized on | Process obinterest recognition included:
acerual basis and {ollowing the Interest [neome Recognilion
Guidelines 2019 issued by NRB. Though accrual basis of
‘ income recognition is prescribed in general, the guidelines
require suspension of interest recognition on accrual basis tor
loans and advances with overdue of more than 12 months
whereas  for  loans  and  advances  with  overdue | b, For fair valuation of collateral, we relied
interest/installment for 4 to 12 months, interest recognition | on the latest  available engineer's
on acerial basis is limited on the basis of resull of collateral | valuation of the collateral and have lest
testing as specified. Given the lack of system capability (o | cheeked the hair cut in fair salue of
suspend recognition of income on the basis of overdue status collateral — as  per  NRB  Income
of loan and fair value of collateral as well as review of fair Recognition guidelines 2019.
valuation of collateral on regular basis, manual intervention
will be required in interest recognition process and hence
create risk of improper application of the guidelines and
determination of the Fair Value of the collateral. This may, in
turn, have an effect on recognition of interest income by the

a. Obtaining clear understanding of the
process of accrual of interest income on
loans and advances in the Core Banking
Software of the company.

c. Test check of the interest income booking
with manual computation.

Investment Valuation, Identification, and | Our audil approach regarding verification of
Impairment process of imvestment valuation,
Investment of the company comprises of investment in | identification and impairment included:

governmenl  bonds, T-bills, development bonds and ) :
investment in quoted and unquoted equity instruments. The | 4. Review of the investment of the company

[l

valuation of the aforesaid securities has been done in and its valuatioh having reference to

compliance with NFRS g and NRB Directive no. 8. The NFRS issued by the Accounting Standard

investment in the government and NRB bonds and T-bills Board of Nepal and NRB Directive 4 read
| should be recognized on reporting date on Amaortized cost with 8. $
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[« Amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra

basis whereas other inyvestiients in cquity insteuments, other | be We assessed the nature of expected cash

than those held for trading, should be valued at Fair Value |
through Other Comprehensive Tncome.

Given the varieties of treatments recommenoded  lor |
valuation of investment based on nature of cash flow, the |
husiness model adopted, complexity of caleulations and the
significance of amount involved in such investments, same”
has been considered as Key Audit Matter in our audil.

—— : 1
Impairment of Loans and Advances [

As per NRB Directive 4, company shall measure impairment
loss on loans and advances at the higher of:

Bank for loan loss provisioning; and

«  Amount determined as per para 5.5. of NFRS ¢, read with
carve out issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants ol
Nepal dated 18 .July 2022, adopting Incurred Loss Model

As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at preseribed
ate should be created on loans and advances based on
overdue status of loans and advances as well as utilization
status of the facility, status of security, borrower's
whereabouts elc.

As per NFRS g read with carve out issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated 18 July 2022,
impairment of loans and advances should be made on
individual impairment basis for loans and advances that are
individually significant and collective impairment basis for
homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered
individually significant.

On individual impairment, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets’ carryving
amount and the present value of estimated future cash ows,
Under collective impairment, loss is determined after taking
into account the Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of
similar credit risk and Management's experienced judgment
as to whether current economic and eredit conditions are
such that the actual level of inherent losses at the reporting
date is like to be greater or less than that suggested by
historical experience.

siven the fact that impairment of loans and advances under
incurred loss model require assessment of future cash flows
as well as historical loss experiences of portfolios. Further,
impairment of loans and advances under NRB norms for loan
loss provisioning will require assessment of overdue status of
loans and advances and proper utilization of loan for
intended purpose. Hence, assessment of availability and
accuracy of required data for impairment of loans and
advances under incurred loss model well as NRB
provisioning norms is regarded as key audit matters.

a5

Information Technology General Controls

[T controls with respect to recording of lransactions,
senerating various  reports  in o complivnee with  NRB
guidelines and other compliances  to regulators s an |

| important part of the process. Such reporting is highly

dependent on Lhe effective working of Core Banking Software |

flow of the investments as well as the
business — model  adopted by the
management on the basis of available
evidence/circumstances and ensured that
classification of investment is
commensurate with nature of cash flow
and management intention of holding the
investment.

For the investment valuation that is done
at amortized cost, we checked the EIR
and amortization schedule on test basis.

For the investment valued through OCI
for quoted investment, we ensured that
fair valuation has been done at the
closing transaction rale in NEPSE as on
16.07.2023 and for the unquoted
investment the fair value has been taken
as the NPR 100,

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

d.

Review of the overdue status of loans and
advances by obtaining data from the
svstem and matched the same with the
NRB 2.2 report.

Sample eredit files were reviewed, among
other things, from the perspective of
utilization of loans and advances for
intended purpose by way of scrutiny of
financial statements, accounl movement,
account turnover ete.

Expected future cash flows from the
individually  significant  loans  and
advances with indication of impairment
are assessed on the basis of realizable
value of collateral securities based on
management estimate.

Grouping of homogeneous groups of
loans was assessed on the basis of nature
and purpose of loans and data of
historical loss experience in portfolios are
assessed on the basis of past due data
from the svstem as well as data of loan
loss provisions ol the defined group in
the past.

“Our audit approach regarding Information
technology of the company is based upon

the Inforination Technology

Guidelines

2012 isstued by NR& and it included:

.

Understanding  the coding  system




and other allied systems. adopted by the company for various
categories of customers.

We have considered this as key audil matter as any control
lapses, validation failures, incorrect input data and wrong
extraction of data may result in wrong reporting of data to the
management, shareholders and regulators

b. Understanding the feeding of the data in
the system and going through the
extraction of the financial information
and statements from the IT system
existing in the company

¢. Checking of the user requirements for
| any changes in the regulations/ policy of
the compam

d. Reviewed the reports generated by the
sistem on sample basis. We verified the
interest incoine and expense booking
regarding loan and deposit on test basis
with the CBS of the company.

¢. We relied on the IT" audit conducted by
the company.
| f. We verified the provisioning of the loan |

and advances based on ageing on the test
check basis as on 16.07 2023.

e = — = R 1

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
inclided in the Management Report, Report of the Director’s Report and Chairman’s Statement but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Such information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thercon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

* - . . . . - . .
When we read such other information, if we conelude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance Jor the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are frec
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nef detecting a material




misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governanee with o statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes pubie
disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and Company
Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the
company, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit;
the financial statements including the statement of finaneial position, statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income. statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all material
respeet in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the
hooks of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and records of the Company are properly maintained
in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that the loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Company was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not
come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director or
any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the
Company or committed any misappropriation of the funds of company.

il Adhikari o
Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: May 10, 2024

UDIN: 240512CA005084pcke a



Best Finance Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount in NPR

Particulars Note 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 " 207,761,996 433,835,769
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 177,085,140 138,555,510
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - .
Derivative financial instruments 44 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 24,675,000 4949811
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 3,579,250,688 3,196,003,428
Investment securities 4.8 1,163,136,353 984,340,945
Current tax assets 49 31,999,006 46,546,725
Investment in subsidiaries 4,10 - -
Investment in associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 213,306,661 183,369,960
Property and equipment 413 315,668,918 252,421,331
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 4,056,472 3,811,545
Deferred tax assets 4.15 - -
Other assets 4.16 34,496,580 26,719,818
Total Assets 5,751,436,814 5,270,554,842

Particulars Note 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 417 102,772,834 59,488,447
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - 65,912,106
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 4,287,730,839 3,763,145927
Borrowing 421 -
Current Tax Liabilities 49 -
Provisions 4.22 - =
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 11,317,713 35,144,210
Other liabilities 4.23 169,574,299 156,736,714
Debt securities issued 4.24 -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 4,571,195,685 4,080,427,404
Equity
Share capital 4.26 854,816,779 828,913,789
Share premium 14,947,992 3,025,356
Retained earnings (226,456,765) (204,414935)
Reserves 4.27 536,933,123 562,603,228
Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,180,241,129 1,190,127,438
Non-controlling interest = =
Total equity 1,180,241,129 1,190,127,438
Total liabilities and equity 5,751,436,814 5,270,554,842
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 148,124,743 108,694,287
Net assets value per share e LN 138.07 143.58

As per our report of even date

P A

Sijan Ratna Shalya
Head- Finance and Planning

Bhandari
.xecutive Officer nil Adhikari

FPartner
S.AR Assomates,

Chartered Accountants

Khim Lal ya Laxmi Shrestha
Chairman Director
o LS
Ram Chandra Devkota Ram Kfishna Chaulagain Sri RanfShrestha
Director Director ) Director

Date : 10 May 2024
Place : Kathmandu



Best Finance Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Amount in NFR

Particulars Note Cuarrent Year Previous Year

Interest income 429 591,475,586 400,912,637
Interest expense 4.30 450,570,808 279,202,372
Net interest income 140,904,778 121,710,265
Fee and commission income 431 25,749,087 21,731,261
Fee and commission expense 432 783,219 418,886
Net fee and commission income 24,965,868 21,312,375
Net interest, fee and commission income 165,870,646 143,022,640
Net trading income 433 - -
Other operating income 4.34 30,213,908 39,546,377
Total operating income 196,084,554 182,569,017
Impairment charge /(reversal) for loans and other losses 435 26,357,398 (148,158,937)
Net operating income 169,727,156 330,727,954
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 436 85,549,308 92,567,689
Other operating expenses 4,37 46,474,803 41,819,524
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 24,809,421 19,451,301
Operating Profit 12,893,624 176,889,440
Non operating income 439 503,107 3,841,713
Non uperatiﬁg expense 4.40 4,000,000 45,226,629
Profit before income tax 9,396,731 135,504,524
Income tax expense 4.41 769,385 (620,885)

Current Tax 2,812,999 -

Deferred Tax (2,043,614) (620,885)
Profit for the period 8,627,346 136,125,409
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 8,627,346 136,125,409
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 8,627,346 136,125,409

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 1.03 16.42
Diluted earnings per share 1.03 1642

‘e -'\T\T T As per our report of even date

nil Adhikari
Partner
5. A. R. Associates,
e Chartered Accountants
Khim Lal Paddyal Laxmi Shrestha Ram Chandra Bﬂm

Chairman Direct y Director

Sri Ram SHfestha
Director Director

Date : 10 May 2024
Place : Kathmandu



Best Finance Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount in NPR
Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year 8,627,346 136,125,409
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/ (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value (103,195,771) 177,633,300
Gains/ (losses) on revaluation
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (7,242,919) (277,076)
Income Tax relating to above items 33,131,607 (53,206,867)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (77,307,083) 124,149,357
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/ (losses) on cash flow hedge -
Exchange gains/ (losses) (arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) - -
Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassify to profit or loss =
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method - =
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax (77,307,083) 124,149,357
Total comprehensive income for the period (68,679,737) 260,274,766
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank (68,679,737) 260,274,766
Non-controlling interest -
Total comprehensive income (68,679,737) 260,274,766

for the period

Khi audyal
Chairman

Head- Finance and Planning

Laxmi Shrestha
Director

_&Z

Director

shnalChaulagain
Director

Date : 10 May 2024
Place : Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

"

unil Adhikari
Partner
S. A, R. Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Sri Ra: restha
Director
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Best Finance Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

517,792,389

359,279,439

Fees and other income received 42,710,725 25,565,666
Dividend received 4,836,027 8,138,480
Receipts from other operating activities 503,107 3,841,713
Interest paid (440,698,685) (270,296,117)
Commission and fees paid (783,219) (418,886)
Cash payment to employees (80,033,630) (66,445,045)
Other expense paid (44.431,189) (52,165,182)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities (104,475) 7,500,068
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets (420,068,264) (975,755,397)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank (38,529,630) (14,211,225)

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions (19,725,189) 323,643,629
Loans and advances to customers (346,571,135) (1,275,822,200)
Other assets (15,242,310) (9,365,601)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 512,482,260 662,744,913
Due to bank and financial institutions 43,284,387 36,760,704
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (65.912,106) (66,219,894)
Deposit from customers 524,584,912 641,687,200
Barrowings - -
Other liabilities 10,525,067 50,516,903
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 92,309,521 (305,510,416)
Income taxes paid/received (1,794,634) (4,549,374)
Net cash flow from operating activities 90,514,887 (310,059,790)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities (276,519,005) (222,962,435)
Receipts from sale of investment securities 47,597,845 34,760,701
Purchase of plant and equipment (86,955,602) (117,979,647)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment - 4,259,063
Purchase of intangible assets (1,346,333) (1,313,067)
Receipt from sale of intangible assets x .
Purchase of investment properties (105,469,581) (87,452,187)
Receipt from the sale of investment properties 83,949,123 66,312,747
Interest received - -
Dividend received . y
Net cash used in investing activities (338,743,553) (324,374,825)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities - -
Repayment of debt securities = <
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities - -
Receipt from issue of shares 37,825,626 -
Dividend paid - -
Interest paid 3 :
Other receipt/payment (15,670,733) 10,978,777
Net cash from financing activities 22,154,893 10,978,777
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (226,073,773) (623,455,838)
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2079 433,835,769 1,057,291,607
Transfer from Merger - -
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivaleptSTald = -
Cash and cash equivalents at Ashadend 2080 [ X 207,761,996 433,835,769

KhirrfLal Paudyal
Chairman

Laxmi Shrestha
Director

Director Director

Date : 10 May 2024
Place : Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Ram Ch@%

Director

il Adhikari
Partner

S. A, R. Associates,
Chartered Accountants

”



Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Retained Earnings (204,414,935) (313,515,088)
Adjustment +/(-) (10,600,690) 2,522,149
a. NFRS 16 Lease Adjustment - 2,410,244
b. Gratuity - 111,905
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 8,627,346 136,125,409
! o
a. General reserve (8,039,167) (29,420,837)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
¢. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (86,273) (1,361,254)
e. Employees' training fund (590,674) (17,366)
f. Other 32,248,944 11,231,729
i. Corporate social responsibility fund 680,452 252,952
ii. Gain on sale of Investment in Equity Instrument 31,568,492 10,978,777
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (182,855,449) (194,435,258)
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (17,498,276) (6,587,282)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

(19,033,122)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) (18,860,121)

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) - 10,532,984

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) -

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (7,242,919) 5,107,743

i. Other (+/-) - -
Distributable profit or (loss) e (226,456,765) (204,414,935)

n?”



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Cash and cash equivalent Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Cash in hand 30,839,594 53,617,517
Balances with B/Fls 176,922,402 380,218,252
Money at call and short notice . -
Other - -
Total 207,761,996 433,835,769
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Statutory balances with NRB 177,085,140 138,555,510
Securities purchased under resale agreement - '
Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -
Total 177,085,140 138,555,510
Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Placement with domestic B/Fls - g
Placement with foreign B/FIs c -
Less: Allowances for impairment - -
Total - .
Derivative financial instruments Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Held for trading - -

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Other

Total




4.5

4.6

4.7

Other trading assets

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Teasury bills 5 .
Government bonds - E
NRB Bonds s -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities = E
Other - -
Total " -
Pledged =
Non-pledged = "
Loan and advances to B/FIs Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Loans to microfinance institutions 25,000,000 5,015,006
Other - =
Less: Allowances for impairment 325,000 65,195
Total 24,675,000 4,949,811
4.6.1: Allowances for impairment
Balance at the end of Previous Year 65,195 4,314,454
Impairment loss for the year: 259,805 (4,249,259)
Charge for the year 259,805 -
Recoveries/reversal = (4,249,259)
Amount written off - -
Balance at the end of this year 325,000 65,195
Loans and advances to customers Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 3,709,728,579 3,300,383,726
Less: Impairment allowances (130,477,891) (104,380,298)
Collective impairment - -
Individual impairment 130,477,891 104,380,298

Net amount

3,579,250,688

3,196,003,428

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

Total

3,579,250,688

3,196,003,428




4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Product
Term loans 161,033,313 89,180,569
Overdraft 267,011,538 312,206,737
Trust receipt/Import loans - -
Demand and other working capital loans 117,202,265 81,688,341
Personal residential loans 655,258,609 504,992,065
Real estate loans 294,960,999 210,047,938
Margin lending loans 226,940,896 220,925,500
Hire purchase loans 169,706,964 173,692,655
Deprived sector loans 176,881,711 207,441,177
Bills purchased . -
Staff loans 52,065,495 23,813,534
Other 1,525,633,266 1,446,135,063
Sub total 3,646,695,056 3,270,123,579
Interest receivable 63,033,523 30,260,147
Grand total 3,709,728,579 3,300,383,726
4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Nepalese rupee 3,709,728,579 3,300,383,726
Indian rupee S >
United State dollar - -
Great Britain pound - -
Euro C -
Japenese yen - -
Chinese yuan - -
Other - -
Total 3,709,728,579 3,300,383,726
4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 3,097,437,817 2,757,435,564
Gold and silver - 380,000
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee 4,015,316 4,015,316
Guarantee of international rated bank - -
Collateral of export document - -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 92,711,707 88,887,498
Collateral of Governement securities = -
Counter guarantee # -
Personal guarantee 173,217,403 167,500,284
Other collateral 279,312,813 ~ 251,904,917
Subtotal 3,646,695,056 3,270,123,579
Unsecured 63,033,523 - 30,260,147
Grant Total 3,709,728,579 3,300,383,7

tf)J?/‘*
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4.8

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Balance at the end of Previous Year
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
impairment
Other movement
Balance at the end of This Year

lective al

s for impairmen

Balance at the end of Previous Year

Impairment loss for the year:
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

impairment

Other movement

Balance at the end of This Year

104,380,298

26,097,593
26,097,593

130,477,891

248,289,976
(143,909,678)

(143,909,678)

104,380,298

Total allowances for impairment

130,477,891

104,380,298

Investment securities

Amountin NPR

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Investment securities measured at amortized

i 919,338,324.00 634,847,145
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 243,798,029.00 349,493,800
Total 1,163,136,353 984,340,945
4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Debt securities = 5
Government bonds 537,972,174 537,972,174
Government treasury bills 381,366,150 96,874,971

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments

Other
Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

919,338,324

e
)

T 634,847,145/ ."/
—



4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079

Equity instruments _ - s
Quoted equity securities 191,248,829 299,054,900
Unquoted equity securities 52,549,200 15,438,900

Total 243,798,029 314,493,800
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4.9 Current tax assets

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Current tax assets 73,507,928 71,713,294
Current year income tax assets 2,034,703 4,578,519
Tax assets of prior periods 71,713,294 67,163,920
Opening Tax asset adjustment (240,069) (29,145)
Current tax liabilities 41,508,922 25,166,569
Current year income tax liabilities 16,342,353 E
Tax liabilities of prior periods 25,166,569 25,166,569
Total 31,999,006 46,546,725

o



4.10 Investment in subsidiaries Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079

Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total investment - :
Less: Impairment allowances - .

Net carrying amount - =

4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
weseeneaShares of Rs. .......each
wenneShares of Rs. ......each
Total - - -
4,10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries Amount in NPR
31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
..shares of Rs. ......each
coeeeeesShares of Rs. .......each - -
Total " = =
4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Finance Amount in NPR
Percentage of ownership held by the Finance
iy 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries Amount in NPR
Current Year
Particulars
..Ltd .Ltd ..Ltd EAN:

Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year v -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on

Ashadh end 2079 =
Dividend paid to NCI
Funds used -
NCI as on Ashadh end 2080 - -
N Previous Year
EREGMEIY Ltd Ltd Ltd Ltd
Equity interest held by NCI (%) "

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year =
Accumulated balances of NCI as on i

Ashadh end 2078 ' ;
Dividend paid to NCI _

Funds used =

NCI as on Ashadh end 2079

~




4.11 Investment in associates

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Investment in quoted associates
Investment in unquoted associates
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount

4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates

Amountin NPR

31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Particulars - -
Cost Fair Cast Fair
Value Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
werenneeShares of Rs. ......each
Total
4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates Amount in NPR
31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Particulars Falr Balr
Cost Value Cost Value




4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Finance

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Percentage of ownership held by the
Finance

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Particulars

4.12 Investment properties

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on the end of Previous Year
Addition/disposal during the year- Net

Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on the end of Previous Year
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

183,369,960
29,936,701

153,158,652
30,211,308

Net amount

213,306,661

183,369,960

Total

213,306,661

183,369,960

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of

the disposal groups) are classified as Investment Properties and measured at cost.




Juawadpnl juswafeuew 1ad s 3j1] [NJasN PIIBWINSS 11343 19A0 03 1502 113Y) 31BI0
'$50| 10 jyo1d uy awodut 1330 se paziuSosad s1 (way ayy jo Junowe Julue

o Ps

Mﬁ% ay

©D s1 §33s5e asalp) uo uonepatdag
i pue [esodsip wouy spaadoad 1au ayy

usamiaq aduaiayip ai) se payenofed) juswdinba pue Ajadoad jo wayr ue jo [esodsip uo ssof Jo uted Auy "pasmour se pasuadxa aie uonIpuod Funiom ul s1asse aiy daay 03 ssueuaurew pue snedas Suodug v_;mn ayy 0} moy
(M armyIpuadxa auy) Wodj s1yausq JNW0L0d3 aIniny aiy eyl ajqeqoad sp 11 ji pazijeyides st aanyipuadya Juanbasqns 1500 1 paziuSoaal A|[eniul 4asse ue se paziuBosaa uaaq sey juawdmba pue Kiadosdjo wair ue Jo 1500 Ay,

| 816'899'STE | ¥8F'TB0'9L - SL9'F0S'E S99'€0T'ST V68 Z0h ¢ 89F'6E1'26 | 9Z0F0L'PE LOL'ZLZ'ZST 0802 PU? Yypeysy uo sy

EVEZIS L | EPEZISZPT | mmv‘mewﬁ - | 180'€06'T ZEF'IZH'E | Z6L'626'T TIBZ08Z | L90'SC99E | BZL 19588 6L0Z PUd Ypeysy uo sy

[ 1Z1'SSZ¥PT | ZIZ1EES | $¥60F0T | LSP'SPLT 89T'I¥9'% | LEO'OTB'T ¥L8'B06'E 755251 8¢ | BZL 19588 8L07 Pua ypeysy uo sy
| | _ anjeA joog 1aN
| & . = | = : g - = : | 5 ssa1foad urIom fende)
SSZ'LYE'EEL OLZ'SSO'LST | LPTOST ¥ | 00SZP8 £69'%L0'2Z | 810'912'8 | 0E6'TEY'0Z | 6EZ'66L'EE I 0802 Pua {PeYSY uo sy
- - - Juaunsnipy
- - - s|esodsiq
B - | - 1eadk ai Joj JuauLeduy
5 ST0'B0L'EZ 166'S69Y ‘ 86L'E0TT LYS'90ET | 865968 E9T'TLT'ET BI6'EES'T Jead ay 10j a8aeyd uonewaidag
SSZ'LYE'EET SSTLYE'EET 9ST'HSH'6E 00S'L¥8 S68'0L6'0Z IL¥'606'S ZEL'SES'6T 9.0'8Z9'0Z | ¥Z8'T009Z | - 6L0Z PU? YpeYSY U0 Sy
- I | | - 64-84 0idn jusunsnipy
(#¥8'BEE"IT) | (v¥8'8EE'9T) | (081'1£9'9) (s95'091°2) (¥s¥'€0£'9) (0so'est) (s65092) - s[esodsiq
= = | - Jead ay Jo0j Juaunredui]
| 190'615'8T T90'6TS'BT S0E'08SZ S88'LEL 862221 Z69'GEL OTL¥TLTT | SBF'LZST = -ead ay 10} 981eyd uonepaidaq
8E0'LIT'TET 8E0LIT'TET TE0'SOS'EY 00S'L¥8 SLS'E6E'7Z T¥6'686°0T 069'Z82'61 T96'EL9'6 6EEPLY'FT - 8L0Z ‘T UBMEBIYS UO SY
_ Juawaredumy pue uopepasdag

_

S8S'89L'S8E 88T PZL LY | 1E9'TEZ 09 00S°L¥8 BIE'GLS'ST | £89'6IE'ET $Z8 46872 LOL'BEG'STT | B9L'6E'TY LOL'ZLZ'ZST |  080Z Pud YpeysSy uo se duejeg
1Z'v0£'s) . . (v12%08'S) | uonen|eAay/Juaunsnipy
- [ 1ead a3 Sunnp [esodsiq

LBLZIO9¥ | _ SZHT00F1 Z9E°0¥S 000°0L¥'TE uonpzipdo)

0£0°L¥Z9% | 099086 - PEO'EBLT 001'68€% 000°EbET 952'108'L2 uopisinboy
L18'652°26 0¥9°086'L = YEO'EBLT 00T°6EE'L 000'EPET 189'C08'T# | Z9£'0%S 000°0L¥'TE ieaj a3 Sulnp uonippy

_ |

S8S'R9L'SHE §85'89L'S8¢ 166'0S2'2S 00S°LY8 VEE96L'ET £85'086'ST $Z81SS'1Z 0vZ'6EY'68 | 90¥'660'19 LOL'Z0B'0ZT 6L0Z Pua ypeysy uo se asuejeg
_ = 64-8.-uonenfesay/Jusunsnipy
_ (e11°89L92) (g0z'L0L9) (615'282'2) (#s#'€0£'9) (BST1'¥8Y) (8L8'%p2'T) aeaf a Burinp [esodsiq

m 7862129 6L6'08Z'ZE uonpzipydny

SS¥'L09'06 00'0EL'VBT'S - L6TZEL'T ¥99'ZLBY 005628 FIEP66'TL uomisinbay
9T+ 190°6ZT 0EL'¥BT'B L6T'ZEL'T $99'2L8'L 005'€Z8 9%EL02'BL : 6L6'0VZZE leaj 3 Suump uonippy
T8E'6LIELE | Y9F'ELLOS 00S'L¥8 959'96Z'%Z ELETIH ¥ 8¥'ZIZ'1Z ZLL'ILY'Z] 90¥'660'19 BZL'T95'88 ¢ 8L07 'T UBMEIYS UO SY
_ 150)

519 S INIxX| 5911055330 mu_..-._wn_n-,—

pug ._NMMN_SE. pua ..MMMN_SP_. B EuENMW.Um_ Lrouyoen k] m._E_Fw:m SIPIYIA » ..B:nEaM Eo:mmmm.% Suiping puE] SIEIRUIL ]

HdN Ul Junoury

juswdinby pue faadoag g£1'¢




a.Lnoul se asuadxa ue se pazuSodau

ale a1em}jos SUIUIBIUIEL LIIM PIIBIOOSSE §1507) 31| [TJasn PAjeLINSa JO SISeq i) U0 PazIIOWE 1 §IS00 a1emyjos 1ainduwoy) 1500 1 Jo §530xa Ul Sjyauaq JWou0dd s1mnj ajesauad [[1m 11 38yl ajqeqoad stal
a1aym pazijerided ae 31em1jos Jo Juawdo[aAap AU LM PIIBIDOSSE S1S07 "aSn 03 a1emyjos dytaads ap Suniq pue axmboe 03 paranoul §1503 aY3 Jo SISeq 3yl uc pazijeydes aJe sasuadl| a1em3jos Jndiwod paimboy

i
= | ZL¥'9S0'Y - ZLP'9S0'Y 0807 PU2 Ypeysy uo sy
(SFSIIBE T BILOLVE - [ 8IL0%vE 6L07 PUa YPEYSY U0 Sy
| ¥EL'E66 = | ¥EL'E66 8L0Z PUd YpRYSY U0 SY
[ anjeA yOod 19N
2 = = 7 = ssaidoag ur yaom rerden
Z6T'LIE'T 869'89%'E - | 869'89%'E 0807 PU3 Ypeysy uo sy
a - : = juaunsnipy
_ g = & - sjesodsig
I = % - aeak ayy a0j Juauniredury
_ 0%Z'2E6 90%'T01°'T = 90¥%'T0T'T 1eaj oy J10j aSJey) uoneznIowy
ZSO'SEY'T Z6Z'LIE'T - Z6Z'LIET 6L0Z pua Ypeysy uo sy
= % _ = = juaunsnlpy
(5 ! = = siesodsig
= - - - 1eaf aw Joj uauuijeduy
91£'229 0¥2'2E6 2 0rZ'zE6 1ea) Ay 10§ af1eyd uonezIoWY
9£L'218 ZSO'SEV'T = Z50'SEP'T 807 ‘T UBMEIYS UQ Sy
7 yusuLitedur] pue uopeZRIou Yy
LEB'BLTD OLT'SZS'L - | 0L1'SZS'L 0807 PUa [peysy uo Se aduefeg
# % = _ uonenjaay /auaunsnlpy
- ‘ = = Jeak a3 Bunnp [esodsig
LIOEIET g - 7 = uonpzipIIdn)
E EEE9PET EEEIE'T uosinbay
| L9O'ETE'T EEE'OVE'T = | EEEOFE'T 1ea}, ay Supnp uonIppy
0LL'S98'Y LES'BLL'9 = | LEB'BLT'D 6407 PU3 Yypeysy uo se ajuejeg
. g 2 - uonen[eaay /juaunsnlpy
» - = - aeaf sy Sunmnp jesodsig
e LIO'ETE'T = LI0ELE] uolzIpIdn)
| 00£%650°E » = uonisinbay
00E'6S0'E LOO'ETET > LIOETET 1eay a1y SuLinp uonIppy
0L%'908'T 0LL'S98Y * 0LL'698'% 8L0Z 'T UBMEIYS U0 5Y
1502
| padojaaaq paseyaang »
| 6L0Z pua pEYSY [BIOL 0807 pua peysy [230L 1910 [Iimpoon siepnonaed
21EM10S B

NN Ut junoury

$1955Y 9|qIBUBIU] PUE [[IMPOOD ¥1F



080'862'9%

(588'029)

(v61'LLY'SH)
(¥86'2E501)
(0TZ¥¥F1'5E)

2y

L9B'90T'ES L59°290'81

(012'v¥1'sE)

£ZI'ER
9VI'TRL 6L
SE0Z0E'ST
(¥Z0'zB6'91)
(066'682°cS)

(ez1'e8) -
9P9TYL 6T
SE0'ZOE'ST
= (vzo'zEs'91)
066'682'€S -

(sanmiqery) /siessy
Xe ], paL1ajad 19N

IB3} SNOIA3L]

(Z09TeT'58)
(119Ev02)

(Tzz'sL1'SE)
YE6'T6T IV

(EzL8¥TIT)
0TZ'PFI'SE

(Tl LIV IT)

sessy

saniiqer vs DG

XEJ, paliajaq

(ETLLTT'TT)

9ST'Z+6'9

1Z9'EE0%E

9LB'TLT'Z
(BOT'SE6'1Z)
(esz'1EE22)

£8E'8S1'0Z 0£9°0¥%0'6

- 951'Z¥6'9
- 1Z9'S£0%2
(9s8'221'2) =
: (sor'see'rz)
657 1EEZ2 -

(seniiqery) /s1assy
XE[, paatajaq 19N

s1as5Y

SRR XEJ, paiiajaq

X[ paliajaq

JIEa JUALIN)
HdN W junowy

T e

L1kdba u'ipaaap w pasuFooas (auroouy) /asuadxa xey possala
awooul aapsaaygaadurod Japo ul pasiudooas (awoouy) /asuadxa xey pattajaq
ssof 10 yjoad uy pasudosas (swooug) fasuadxa xey parsajaq
Jafuaw 03 anp Jusunsnipy Suiuadg
1eak ay Buninp (jesiaaay)/uonemdrip
8407 ‘uemelys T uo se saniiqer|/(19sse) xe1 paasajag
6L0Z YPEYSY 1€ U0 se (sanljiqei])/1asse xe) paisajad 19N
ajed xeg U sadueyd o] anp xXel paliajag
535S0| XB] Pasnun jo piemJo] L1183 10 Xey paLiajag
Sa5UBIB)JIp AJ0IGAUE) WXe] paliajaq
sadualapip Adolodwag a0
SUOISTADI
sapiiqer] asea]
uepd 3yauaq pauyap saafojdy
juawdinba g Asadodg
$3NLIN0AS JUaURSAAU|
sanuadosd Juaunsaau|
S19WOISND 0] SIIUBAPE PUB SUROT]
Si:/€ 03 adueApY pue ueo|
sHIa)l Sulmo[jo] uo sasuaiajip Aletodwa) uo xey padiajaq

Aymmba u1 Apoaaip up pasmudooas (swoeoul)/asuadxa xey pastajaq
awoou) aajsuayaaduros Jaygo uj pasjudosas (awoouy) fesuadxa xey paitajaq
sso] 10 jyoad uy pasiudooaa (swoour) /asuadxa xey pastajaqg

Jead ayy Furanp ([essasay) /uoneuidig
64-8L07 10] XE) paliajap pajelsay
6£-BL0Z Ul S20LINDAS JUaUnNsaau] Jo Suipau J0j JUILIEISaY
6407 'T uemelys uo se saniiqel]/(19sse) xey pariajad
080Z '4peYsY 1€ uo se (sanijiqer]) /1asse xey paiiaja( 19N
ajed xej ul saBueyd o anp xej pallajaq
53550] XE} Pasnun Jo pJemdoj £11ed uo Xe paliajaq
SaouaJapip Azododula) uo Xel paliajaq

saduaJtayip Aododway B0

SUDISIADL

saniqer| asea]

uejd yauaq pauyap saafojduy

juawdmba g fjuadoag

$3[IANJ38 JUAUNSaAU]

sapgadoad Juaunsaau]

S13WOISND 0] SAIUBAPE PUE SUEDT]

s1:d/6 01 asueApY pue ueo]
Su1a}| BUIMOo|[0] uo saduala)jlp Atosodwa) uo xey paltajaq

SIE[NINIE]

Xel paaiajaq STv



4.16 Other assets

Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Assets held for sale - -
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable e =
Accounts receivable 240,471 377,839
Accrued income 2,677,500 2,082,500
Prepayments and deposit 7,878,493 2,657,419
Income tax deposit 6,923,456 6,923,456
Deferred employee expenditure 242,615 829,896
Other 16,534,045 13,848,708
Stationary Stock 981,916 481,359
Receivable Insurance 184,765 128,009
Bank 1 day interest receivable - 6,225
Unwinding of Interest 645,057 480,138
Gratuity Surplus = -
Debit Card Stock 349,396 135774
Other 14,372,911 12,617,206
Total 34,496,580 26,719,818

: A
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4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

4.18

4.19

4.20

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Money market deposits -
Interbank borrowing = =
Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Other deposits from BFls 102,772,834 59,488,447
Total 102,772,834 59,488,447

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institutions have been presented
under this head, Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Refinance from NRB - 65,912,106
Standing Liquidity Facility - =
Lender of last report facility from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements -
Other payable to NRB -
Total - 65,912,106

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last

resort, sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

Derivative financial instruments Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap
Forward exchange contract
Others
Held for risk management - .
Interest rate swap -
Currency swap -
Forward exchange contract -
Other =
Total - -
Deposits from customers Amount in NFR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Institutions customers:
Term deposits 228,037,921 344,340,899
Call deposits 200,898,343 194,016,154
Current deposits 34,341,408 41,524,513
Other 31,906,416 11,020,871
Individual customers:
Term deposits 2,784,557,972 2,250,019,112
Saving deposits 981,709,093 892,243,255
Current deposits 26,279,686 29,981,123

Other

Total

4,287,730,839

3,763,145,927

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan

Other

4,287,730,839

3,605,279,294

Total

4,287,730,839

3,605,279,294




4.21 Borrowing Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Domestic Borrowing -
Nepal Government - -
Other Institutions - =
Other = .
Foreign Borrowing -
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions -
Total . =
4.22 Provisions Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Provisions for redundancy -
Provision for restructuring -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation -
Onerous contracts = -
Other = -
4.22.1: Movement in provision
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2079 - -
Provisions made during the year - -
Provisions used during the year = -
Provisions reversed during the year =
Unwind of discount - -
Balance at Ashadh end, 2080 = -
4.23 Other liabilities Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 6,633,446 277,076
Liability for long-service leave 16,507,075 13,844,370
Short-term employee benefits - -
Bills payable . -
Creditors and accruals 11,900,704 11,112,209
Interest payable on deposit 4,806,899 3,933,521
Interest payable on borrowing - refinance - -
Liabilities on defered grant income s -
Unpaid Dividend 594,563 594,563
Liabilities under Finance Lease 80,112,071 65,808,820
Employee bonus payable 1,044,081 15,056,058
Other 47,975,460 46,110,097
TDS Payable 5,187,379 4,937,905
Interest TDS 3,894,164 3,678,506
Salary TDS 662,532 727,802
Other TDS 630,683 531,597
Others 42,788,081 41,172,192
Interest Suspense Due to NBA 25,610,997 31,727,194
Other Payable 15,987,065 8,254,977
Provisions 1,190,019 1,190,021
Total 169,574,299 156,736,714

4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079

Present value of unfunded obligations =
Present value of funded obligations =
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets L S
Present value of net obligations - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 43,468,863 37,439,488

-

=

-




4.23.2: Plan assets

Amount in NPR

Plan assets comprise 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Equity securities -
Government bonds

Bank deposit - -
Other(Deposit at CIT) 36,835,415 37,162,412
Total 36,835,415 37,162,412

Actual return on plan assets

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2079 37,439,488 42,818,463
Actuarial losses 3,369,029 (7,004,709)
Benefits paid by the plan (4,200,065) (5,496,857)
Current service costs and interest 6,860,411 7,122,591
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end, 2080 43,468,863 37,439,488
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2079 37,162,412 37,433,644
Contributions paid into the plan 3,873,068 5,225,625
Benefits paid during the year (4,200,065) (5,496,857)
Actuarial (losses) gains (3,873,890) (3,122,930)
Expected return on plan assets 3,873,890 3,122,930
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end, 2080 36,835,415 37,162,412
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Acturial (gain)/loss
Expected return on plan assets
Total - 5
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Acturial (gain)/loss 7,242,919 277,076
Total 7,242,919 277,076
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Discount rate 10.00% 10.00%
Expected return on plan asset 10.00% 10.00%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
Withdrawal rate 10.00% 10.00%

4,24 Debt securities issued Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through
profit or loss -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost E
Total 3 -

4.25 Subordinated Liabilities Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities
component)
Other

L

Total

S i
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4.26 Share capital Amounein NBR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Ordinary shares 854,816,779 828,913,789
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 854,816,779 828,913,789
4.26.1: Ordinary shares
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Authorized Capital
10,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued capital
8,905,242.37 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 890,524,237 890,524,237
8,548,167.79 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 854,816,779 828,913,789
Total 854,816,779 828,913,789
4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership 100% 854,816,779 100% 828,913,789
Nepal Government - - - -
"A" class licensed institutions -
Other licensed intitutions =
Other Institutions (Promoters) - - - -
Public 40.18% 343,445,662 40.73% 337,602,672
Other (Promoters) 59.82% 511,371,117 59.27% 491,311,117
Foreign ownership = * - -
Total 100% 854,816,779 100% 828,913,789
Note: Shareholders holding 0.5% or more Shares
SN |Name of Shareholder No. of Shares %
1 |Rajendra Kumar Sharma 901,642 10.55%
2 |Robinda Prasad Shrestha 531,849 6.22%
3 |Devendra Prasad Dhoju 374,842 4.39%
4 _|Rajendra Prasad Dhoju 351,022 4.11%
5 |LaxmiShrestha 208,094 2.43%
6 |Indra Lal Shrestha 200,584 2.35%
7 _|Ramvha Shrestha 165,231 1.93%
8 [Milan Thapa 145,586 1.70%
9 |Bindu Gaire Sharma 145,450 1.70%
10 |Bijula Thapa Khadka 106,936 1.25%
11 |Yubaraj Sharma 106,434 1.25%
12 |Durga Vohra 85,071 1.00%
13 |Bandana Sapkota 81,923 0.96%
14 |Gauri Shrestha 75,582 0.88%
15 |Ran Kumari Shrestha 68,426 0.80%
16 |Amulya Manandhar 58,967 0.69%
17 |Bishnu Bahadur K.C. 56,340 0.66%
18 |Ram Krishna Neupane 52,152 0.61%
19 |Jamuna Kumari Thapa 47,486 0.56%
20 |Nirmala Kumari Suwal 43,604 0.51%
1 |Kapur Prasad Vaijoo 42,902 0.50%
Total 3,850,123 | 45.05%
4.27 Reserves Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Statutory general reserve 239,005,432 231,022,199
Exchange equilisation reserve . -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 1,506,703 2,100,882
Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 245,337,016 201,735,700
Investment adjustment reserve . =
Capital reserve 3,628,619 A 3,628,619
Assets revaluation reserve s .
Fair value reserve 52,106,270 124,343,310
Dividend equalisation reserve - - -
Debenture redemption reserve = .
Actuarial gain (5.263,996) (193,953)
Special reserve - -
Deferred Tax Reserve - .
Other reserve o 613,079 22,405
Total = ¢\ 536,933,323 562,659,162
-
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4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Amount in NPR

Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Contingent liabilities 200,000 10,150,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 121,014,000 78,557,000
Capital commitment - =
Lease Commitment - =
Litigation 26,910,743 19,987,287
Total 148,124,743 108,694,287
4.28.1: Contingent liabilities
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Acceptance and documentary credit - =
Bills for collection -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 200,000 10,150,000
Underwriting commitment - -
Other commitments - =
Total 200,000 10,150,000
4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079
Undisbursed amount of loans - :
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 121,014,000 60,261,000
Undrawn limits of credit cards = .
Undrawn limits of letter of credit -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 121,014,000 60,261,000
4.28.3: Capital commitments
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashad 2080 32 Ashad 2079

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Amount in NPR

Particulars

31 Ashad 2080

32 Ashad 2079

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
* lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

The bank's litigations are generally related to its ordinary course of business pending on various jurisdiction. Litigations are

mainly in the nature of income tax. Other litigations mclude cases pending in various courts g tribunal in Nepal pertaining to
assets recovered from the bcr‘rcwej/ &




4.29

4,30

431

4.32

4.33

Interest income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent 9,516,100.00 11,442,165
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 1,878,832.00 3,961,627
Loan and advances to bank and financial Institutions 1,356,097.00 7,395,813
Loans and advances to customers 519,581,356.00 341,604,686
Investment securities 52,366,749.00 22,822,875
Loan and advances to staff 3,619,739.00 2,046,398
Other 3,156,713.00 11,639,073
Total interest income 591,475,586.00 400,912,637
Interest expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions 6,650,686 6,615,400
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 1,415,600 2,517,532
Deposits from customers 436,361,474 265,029,835
Borrowing = =
Debt securities issued -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 6,143,048 5,039,605
Total interest expense 450,570,808 279,202,372
Fees and Commission Income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan administration fees - =
Service fees 15,519,956 18,612,611
Consortium fees - .
Commitment fees - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM Issuance and renewal fees 110,630 -
Renewal fees - .
Prepayment and swap fees % <
Investment banking fees -
Asset management fees = J
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees x -
Commission on letter of credit - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued - .
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental 82,000 69,575
Other fees and commission Income 10,036,501 3,049,075
Total fees and Commission Income 25,749,087 21,731,261
Fees and commission expense Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
ATM management fees 783,219 418,886
VISA /Master card fees = =
Guarantee commission e
Brokerage - -
DD/TT /Swift fees . i
Remittance fees and commission % .
Qther fees and commission expense - =
Total fees and C ission Expense 783,219 418,886
Net trading income Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction
Other

Net trading income

—_—




4.34 Other operating income Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Forelgn exchange revauation gain = v
Gain//loss on sale of investment securities - 3,781,924

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -

Dividend on equity instruments - 4,836,027 8,138,480
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - 3,740,923
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 8,416,243 9,071,868

Operating lease income N M
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver . -

Locker rent = 2
Other 16,961,638 14,813,182
Total 30,213,908 39,546,377
4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls 259,805 (4,249,259)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 26,097,593 (143,909,678)

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial investment - -
Impairment charge /(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment = -
Impairment charge /(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties -

Total 26,357,398 (148,158,937)
436 Per | Expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary 38,962,780 35,163,190
Allowances 26,103,284 22,740,967
Gratuity expense 61,461 2,818,905
Provident fund 3,890,208 3,522,459
Uniform 2,053,477 1,800,000
Training & development expense 2,186,357 2,315,331
Leave encashment 7,330,301 5,825,900
Medical 3,106,678 2,863,972
Insurance - -

Employees incentive - .
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense . -

Finance expense under NFRS - 460,907

Other expenses related to staff 810,681 -
Subtotal 84,505,227 77,511,631
Employees bonus 1,044,081 15,056,058
Grand total 85,549,308 92,567,689
437 Other operating expense Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Directors' fee 403,500 650,000
Directors' expense 295,891 207,548
Auditors' remuneration 654,450 621,500
Other audit related expense 1,226,559 613,500
Professional and legal expense 1,233,985 B77.327
Office administration expense 41,672,066 37,249,221
Operating lease expense - 1347476

Operating expense of Investment properties . -
Corporate social responsibility expense 680,452 252,952

Onerous lease provisions ¢ - -

Other 307,900 -

Share Issue Expenses 307,900 -

Others = -
Total 46,474,803 41,819,524
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4.37.1 Office administration exp

4.38

439

4.40

441

Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Water and electricity 3,536,347 2,816,060
Repair and Maintenance 2,290,484 2,822,149
(a) Building 410,770 275,791
(b) Vehicle 863,253 1,205,330
(c) Computer and accessories 85,830 45,863
(d) Office euipment and furniture 718,606 990,944
(e) Other 212,025 304,221
Insurance 678,459 697,624
Postage, Telephone, Internet and Email 3,071,165 2,737,472
Printing & Stationery 1,892,308 1,798,037
Newspaper & Periodicals 142,056 78,444
Advertisements 1,229,072 1,406,115
Donation 3,700 23,000
Security Expense 9,439,779 7.416,246
Deposit and Loan guarantee premium 2,225,630 1,417,438
Travel Allowance and Expense 2,276,938 2,235,006
Fuel Expenses 1,868,480 1,364,265
Entertainment = -

Annual/Special General Meeting expense 224,753 442,885
Other 12,792,895 11,994,480
{a) Office Expenses 7,119,314 6,230,313
(b) Technical Service Fees 2,272,393 1,554,293
(c) Other Fees & taxes 1,211,089 2,691,188
(d) Miscelleneous Expenses 630,889 778,823
(e) Membership Fee 495,000 739,863
(f) Branch Opening/Relocation Expenses 824,141 -

(g) Income Tax Expenses 240,069 -

Total 41,672,066 37,249,221
Depreciation & Amortisation Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Depreclation on property and equipment 23,708,015 18,519,061
Depreciation on investment property = -

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,101,406 932,240
Total 24,809,421 19,451,301

Depreciation Is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the systematic allocation
of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life, Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRS on property and
equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible assets is presented under this head.

Non operating income Amount n NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off 503,107 3,841,713
Other income = _
Total 503,107 3,841,713
Non operating exp Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan written off 45,111,402
Redundancy provision » <
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense 4,000,000 115227
Total 4,000,000 45,226,629
Income tax exp Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 2,812,999 .
Current year 2,812,999 -
Adjustments for prior years - .
Deferred tax expense (2,043,614) (620,885)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,043,614) (620,885)
Changes in tax rate - :
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 769,385 (620,885)

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and presented under this account head. This account head includes current tax
expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.

A

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax exp and accounting profit Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Profit before tax 9,396,731 135,504,524
Tax amount 2,819,019 40,651,357.20
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 20,102,476 (16,067,916)
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add /less: Tax effect on other items (11.910,963) (11,910.963)
Total income tax expense - 11,010,532 12,672,478
Effective tax rate e p 117.17% 9,359
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amountin NPR '000

CurrentYear As Previous Year As
at Ashad end at Ashad end
1. 1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES 2080 2079
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 4,356,309 3,792,066
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 143,292 263,043
¢ Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk - -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (a+b+c) 4,499,601 4,055,109
Adjustment under Pillar I1
SRP 6.4a(7) Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of gross income, 15,757 32,907
SRP 6.4a(9) Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 4% of RWE 179,984 162,204
SRP 6.4a (10) Desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved. Add 1% of RWE 44,996 40,551
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 4,740,338 4,290,771
Current Year As Previous Year As
at Ashad end at Ashad end
1.2 CAPITAL 2080 2079
Core Capital (Tier 1) 885,942 862,119
a Paid up Equity Share Capital 854,817 828,914
b Calls in Advance - -
c Share Premium 14,948 3,025
d Proposed Bonus Equity Shares (incl. fractional shares c/f) - -
e Statutory General Reserves 239,005 230,966
f Retained Earnings (226,457) (204,415)
g Unaudited current year cumulative profit - -
h Capital Redemption Reserve - -
1 Capital Adjustment Reserve 3,629 3,629
i Dividend Equalisation Reserve = -
k Deferred Tax Reserve -
1 Other Free Reserve =
m Less: Deferred Tax Assets -
n Less: Fictitious Assets -
0 Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions -
p Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - -
q Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits -
r Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments -
s Less: Reciprocal crossholdings
t Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized -
u Less: Other Deductions - -
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 63,662 54,833
a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
b Subordinated Term Debt =
c Hybrid Capital Instruments S =
d General loan loss provision 63,662 54,833
e Investment Adjustment Reserve - -
f Assets Revaluation Reserve - -
g Exchange Equalization Reserve - -
h Other Reserves - -
Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier II) 949,604 916,952
Current Year As Previous Year As
at Ashad end at Ashad end
1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS 2080 2079
Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 18.69% 20.09%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capjtaio Total Risk Weighted Exposures 20.03% 21.37%
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RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR MARKET RISK
As on 31 Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Amount in NPR

[ Current Year Previous Year
CURRENCY Open Position Exchange Rate Open Position (NPR)  Relevant Open
. No. (FCY) Position
1 INR
2 USD
3 GBP
4 EUR
5 THB
6 CHF
7 AUD
8 CAD
9 SGD
10 JPY
11 HKD
12 DKK
13 SEK
14 SAR
15 QAR
16 AED
17 MYR
18 KRW
19 CNY
20 KWD
21 BHD
Total Open Position (a) -
Fixed Percentage (b) 5% 5%
Capital Charge for Market Risk {c=(a*b)} :
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in 9.09 1

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure {e=(c*d)} -
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1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Reporting Entity

Best Finance Company Limited (referred to as "The Financial Institution" hereinafter) is a national
level finance company domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under
Companies Act, 2063 & Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Financial Institution is
licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank as a Class “C” financial institution. During the financial year
2075/76, the financial institution merged with Synergy Finance Limited and started joint operation
from 2075.04.17. The registered office of the financial institution is in Kamaladi, Nepal. Best
Finance Company Limited network now includes 18 branches and 2 ATM's across 13 districts.

The Company has a primary listing on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited as "BFC".

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting
Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN) and as per the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives,

2079.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss
and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown differently, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to the Accounts.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB), Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) subject to the notice dated 18 July 2022 regarding the Carve-outs in
NFRS with Alternative Treatment and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No.
4 of NRB Directives, 2079.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by
ASB during the fiscal year 2075/76. To comply the NFRS provisions following dates have been
considered for the reporting time period.

Relevant Financial Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Statement
Comparative SFP* Date 32 Ashad 2079 16 July 2022
1 Shrawan 2078 - 32 Ashad 16 July 2021 -16 July
Comparative reporting period 2079 2022
NFRS SFP* Date 31 Ashad 2080 16 July 2023
1 Shrawan 2079 - 31 Ashad 17 July 2022-16 July
NFRS reporting period 2080 2023
*SFP- Statement of Financial Position

Functional and Presentation Currency .

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest
rupee except were indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to suit its circumstances and
operating environment most appropriately. Further, the Company is required to make judgments
in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be

\
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2.4.1

2.5

2.6

2.6.1

followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a
different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial
statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial
statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are
applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Company is
satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In
making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information
relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows
and capital resources.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with Nepal
Financial Reporting Framework (NFRS). The accounting policies are applied consistently with
changes, if any and are disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible. When policies are
not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS, other reporting standards and generally accounting
principles are followed.

Reporting Pronouncements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by
ASB as effective on September 13, 2013. The NFRS confirm, in all material respect, to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated 18 July 2022
has resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be
provided to the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation
of Accounting Standard Board (ASB). Details of carve out are provided as follows:

NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
a) Impairment

Carve out from the requirement to determine impairment loss on financial assets — loans and
advances by adopting the ‘Incurred Loss Model’ unless the reporting entity is a bank or a
financial institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Such entities
shall measure impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher of amount derived as per
norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and amount determined as
per NFRS. The Bank has adopted this mandatory treatment. As a result of this treatment, the
Bank has recognized impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher of the amount
derived as per prudential norms specified in NRB directive no. 2/78 and the amount derived
from incurred loss model as specified by NFRS. The Bank has recognized impairment loss on
other financial assets measured at amortized cost in accordance with NFRS.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the
part of effective interest rate.

As per NFRS-9, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider
future credit losses while calculating the effectlve interest rate The calculation includes all fees
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2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

3.1

and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate.

This Carve-out states that the effective interest rate calculation shall include all fees and points
paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably. The Bank has
availed this Carve-out in the case of loans and advances for Financial Year 2078/79 and has not
considered all fees and points paid or received which are impracticable to measure reliably while
determining effective interest rate. As a result of this alternative treatment, the Bank has excluded
the full amount of upfront loan management fees or commission received on loans and advances
in the calculation of effective interest rate for the loan. The upfront fees and commission are
recognized as income in the same period, the loan is approved.

New Standards in issue but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments —
Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial
Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss, unless
required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard
Interpretations Committee (SIC)) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting
Policies of the company.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by
the Nepal Accounting Standard — NFRS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the
understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the company. Understandability of
the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial
information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop, such
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Brief explanations on accounts head of the Statement of Financial Position-Assets
Side

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, money at call & short notice
and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition dates that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used
by the Company in the agement of its short-term commitments.
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i.

ii.

1I.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Indirect Method’ in accordance with NAS
07- Statement of Cash Flows.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial
position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company initially recognize loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/ subordinated
liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the Company becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds,
debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase
are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to purchase/ acquire the financial
assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date at which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Classification

Financial Assets

The Company classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for
trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition,
the Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income.are classified as financial assets
at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;




¢ Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs
are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as
incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

¢ Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

Measurement

Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair Value Reserve’. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the
investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the Finance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably. Dividends recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other income’
line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably
elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the
FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain
or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at
FVTPL is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does
not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is
designated as at FVTPL. .

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
—_
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It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if;

Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise;

The financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
Company is provided internally on that basis; or

It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS g permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected

immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in
the ‘Interest Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the
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3.2.1

3.2.2

extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled
or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued
using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Company establishes fair value
using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions
between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price — i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair
value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If
such fair value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on
initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss
immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the
instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost, considering the non-trading of promoter
shares up to the date of balance sheet, the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with
certainty. Hence, these investments are recognized at cost net of impairment, if any.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that
a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an
impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Company on terms that the Company would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower
or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other
observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the ;oup, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.
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In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the company considers to restructure loans rather
than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is
measured using the EIR method and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances measured at amortized
cost at both specific asset and collective level. The Company first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and that
are not individually significant are assessed on collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the
probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss
rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. Ifina
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the
recovery is recognized in the ‘non-operating income’.

Trading Assets

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Company acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part of a portfolio
that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All
changes in fair value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as regarded as
fair value through profit & loss account.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in Net trading income. Meanwhile, the
cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded
as part of the carrying value of the hedged item in the statement of financial position and is also
recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in Net trading income.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively. For
hedged items recorded at amortized cost, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged
item on termination and the face value is amortized over the remaining term of the original hedge
using the recalculated EIR method. If the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value
adjustment is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or loss.
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The Company currently does not have any derivative assets and derivative liabilities.
Property and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized
at cost, if, and only if:

e Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

e The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

e the cost of materials and direct labor.

¢ any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use.
* when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the

costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located;
and

e C(Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the
property and equipment is measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the
reporting date. The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part
of that equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the
item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

Assets with a value of less than NPR 2,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their useful life
in the year of purchase.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress
account (CWIP). At the point when an asset is capable of operating at management’s intended use,
the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property and equipment and
depreciation commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove
an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the
estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of
acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful life as per management judgment as follows:

Nature of Assets Useful Life (vears)
Furniture 5
Equipment’ 5

Vehicles 7
Computers 5

Building 40
Leasehold As per Lease term
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The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in
use is considered not material.

Depreciation on new assets shall commence from the month after the month in which the assets is
acquired or capitalized. Where assets are disposed off, depreciation shall be calculated up to the
month preceding the month of such disposal.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
derecognition of an item of property and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item
is derecognized (unless on a sale & lease back). The gain shall not be classified as revenue.
Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted, if any.

Intangible Assets/ Goodwill

Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in
Business Combination is recognized as goodwill. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are
capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost.
Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with
maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an
asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written
down immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the
date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative
periods is five years. Software assets with costs less than NPR. 2,000 are charged off on purchases
as revenue expenditure.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Investment Property
Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied

property. The company holds investment property as non-banking assets that has been acquired
through the enforcement of security over the loan and advances.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition the company has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40- “Investment
Property” and since it is not intended for owner -occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost
is incurred. If the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an
investment property.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
g-year of retirement or disposal.

property are recognized jmthe Statement of Profit or loss in th
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Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities
of the disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell when:

1) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale;

(ii) they are available-for-sale in their present condition; and

(iii)  their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable
accounting policies described above.

Income Tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which those
temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. The company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced
in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of

income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in
the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax
assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in
respect of previous periods.

b. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting
date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of "deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized in OCI is recognized in OCI. Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlatign to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. (470




Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.9 Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

The Company accepts deposits from its customers under account, current, term deposits and
margin accounts which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These
transactions are recorded on the Company's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as
a liability for the Company and represents the amount owed by the Company to the customer.

b. Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Company. Deposits, debt
securities issued, and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental
direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective
interest method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
However, debentures issued by the Company are subordinate to the deposits from customer.

The Company has not issued such instruments till date.

¢. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the
claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Company does not have any of
such subordinated liabilities.

3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

o apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the entity; or
present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or

o the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. ;

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are
reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the

Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

3.11  Revenue Recognition
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ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases
relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable.
The Company’s revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange
income, cards income, remittance income, banc-assurance commission, etc. and the bases of
incomes recognition are as follows:

a. Interest Income
Interest income are recognized under accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in
the profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial assets measured at amortized cost. Effective
Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or cash payments
through the expected life of financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Effective Interest Rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset
and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period.

The company has adopted the alternative treatment as provided by the Carve Out in NFRS
implementation. Resultant of this the company has excluded the full amount of upfront loan
management fees or commission received on loans and advances in the calculation of effective
interest rate.

Nepal Rastra Bank has issued “Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income 2020” vide circular
no. Bai. Bi. Ni.Bi./Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/o1/076/77 for implementation in the financial
statements of current reporting period. This document has provided guidance on application
of judgments in assessing the collectability of interest on loans and advances and determining
whether there is a need to recognize interest suspense or to cease interest accrual. The company
has implemented this guideline and recognized interest suspense and stopped interest accrual
in qualifying accounts while determining the interest income for the current reporting period.

Interest income presented in statement of profit and loss includes:

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest
rate method. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans, investment in
government securities, investment in corporate bonds, investment in NRB Bond and deposit
instruments, reverse repos, inter banking lending etc.

Interest on investment securities measured at amortized cost, calculated on effective interest rate.
Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over
the period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the company’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest income to be recognized using the effective interest method, except for those
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of
the financial instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The effective interest rate is calculated on initial recognition of the financial asset or liability by
estimating the future cash flows after considering all the contractual terms of the instrument but
not future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the
company including expected early redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and
discounts thatare an integral part of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction costs related
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of financial instruments is also taken into account in the
calculation. Once financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company has availed the carve-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit
on individual products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the company
charges on the loans and advances (which is in negligible figure), applying EIR method would not
be practical and cost effective. Hence, initial service fees and renewal charges have been recognized
during the period when such income accrue rather than being included within the component of
interest income under EIR method.

b. Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or
significant act performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining such value. Whenever,
the cost of recognizing fees and commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in
determining such value, the fees and commissions are charged off during the year.

¢. Dividend Income

Dividend incomes are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this
is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net
income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based
on the underlying classification of the equity investment.

d. Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes
all realized and unrealized fair value changes, interest and dividends.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria
are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different
basis.

The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.

The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify
the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss
on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in
statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned or incurred is acerued in Interest income or Interest
expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in
other operating income when the right to the payment has been established.

Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using
effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the Company’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes
in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Employees Benefits
a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be esgimated reliably under short term employee benefits.
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ii.

a)

b)

c)

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period):

e wages, salaries, and social security contributions,
¢ paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

e profit-sharing and bonuses and

e non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel
expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.
All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-
determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Company does not assume any future liability for
provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

Defined Benefit plan

The company provides Pension & Gratuity Plan, Retirement Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in
terms of Annual Leave and Sick Leave) as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-
employment benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded
whereas the company makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for
lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on
termination of employment for an amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each
completed year of service.

The pension plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or equated
payment till death of the employee (and half thereafter to the spouse of the employee). Further,
employees of the Company are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees can
carry forward the un-availed leave and are entitled to encash the cumulative leave at the time of the
retirement. The obligation under these plans are calculated by a qualified actuary every year using
projected unit credit method.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Company to its employees:

Gratuity

Company provides for gratuity on accrual basis covering eligible employees in terms of Employee
Service Byelaws of the Company. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at
retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount
equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed years of service. The Company
accounts for the liability for gratuity as per the actuarial valuation.

Leave Salary

The employees of the company are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed / unutilized
leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially
in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the company. The Company accounts for the liability for
accumulated leave as per the actuarial valuation.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the company is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to
employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits
are recognized if the company made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer
will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable

in more than 12 months the repefting date, they are discounted to their present value.
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Leases

Lease is a contract in which one party provides an asset to the other party for some consideration
usually a periodic payment. The Finance assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at
inception of the contract. In accordance with NFRS-16 “Leases”; the Finance recognizes a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets as the Finance is lessee in all lease
arrangements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be
readily determined, the Finance uses its incremental borrowing rate. Since the Finance apply
NFRS-16; “Leases” to its leases in accordance with Para Cs(b), retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initial application, it uses
incremental borrowing rate which is the interbank borrowing rate/lending of the Finance.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

e Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

e Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the commencement date.

e The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

» The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented within other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Finance remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related

right-of use asset) whenever:

* The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting
in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

» Thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-measured by
discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount
rate is used)

» Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is re-measured based on the lease term of the modified lease by

discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Finance did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any
initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Whenever the Finance incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognized and measured under NAS 37. To the extent
that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-
of use asset. If a lease transfer ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Finance expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease. The Finance depreciates Right-of-use assets from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the

underlying asset. \
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The right-of-use assets are presented Within Property, plant and Equipment in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

The Finance applies NAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. Variable
rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

As a practical expedient, NFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and
instead account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The
Finance has not any non-lease component associated with the lease.

From FY 2021-22, the company has transitioned from NAS-17 and has applied NFRS-16 for
accounting of leases. All previously classified operating leases are now recognized as right-of-use
assets with corresponding lease liabilities. Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of
the liability and an interest expense. The interest expense is charged to the Statement of Profit or
Loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the remaining lease term
on a straight-line basis.

The company transitioned into NFRS 16 in accordance with the modified retrospective approach,
therefore previous year comparative figures are not restated. Additionally, the definition of a lease
under NAS 17 and its related interpretation has been retained.

The Bank has applied incremental borrowing rate of 7%. Management has applied judgement and
formed assumptions in relation to assessing the incremental borrowing rate. Management has
formed its judgements and assumptions based on historical experience, internal and external data
points.

3.15 Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to
provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide
funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees,
whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Company has not made payments at the
reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as commitments.

3.16  Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as
residual interest in total assets of the Finance after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are
classified as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes
in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in
the period in which they are declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the
initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve,
regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, CSR reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in
retained earning computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

3.17 Earnings per share including diluted earnings per share

The Company presents bagic and diluted earnings per share /05 )
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4.2

4.3

basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between
the reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require
the restatement of earnings per share.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to
transactions with any of the company’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed by
the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its
performance.

The company has classified five operating segments as: Province 1, Madhesh, Bagmati, Gandaki
and Lumbini.

Rounding Off and Comparative Figures

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese figure, rounded off to the nearest rupee.
Previous year figure has been reclassified/ rearranged/ regrouped to facilitate their comparison,
where necessary.

Reclassification in Line Item of Financial Statements of Prior Period

The items in the financial statements of previous period have been reclassified based on details of
information available, the items that has been reclassified are presented below:

Nature of Item Previous Classification New Classification
heading heading
Investment in scheme of CIT Cash and Cash Equivalent Investment Securities
Deposit from Cooperative Institutions Due.to ]?ank i Eisinmicial st B
Institutions customers

Brief Description of Schedules forming part of Financial Statement

The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other
bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets
with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the licensed institution in the
management of its short term commitments.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased
from Nepal Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal
Rastra Bank has been presented under this account head.

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities
of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented under this account head

—~ =N
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract
etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented under this head.

Other Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
shall be presented under this account head. The other trading asset includes non-derivative
financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury
bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.

Loan and Advances to Banks and Financial Institutions

Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other bank and financial
institutions shall be presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank
and financial institutions shall be deducted.

Loans and advances to customers

Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other bank and financial
institutions shall be presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank
and financial institutions shall be deducted.

Investment securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented under
this account head in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured at
amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and changes in fair value shall be recognized in profit
or loss, or other comprehensive income as per the business model adopted by the financial
institutions for the specific securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form of
bonus shares, the valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only
without changing in the cost of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following
particulars in respect of investment in shares and debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of other
companies
(1) Name of the company
(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including the rate of
dividend.
(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received),
(4) Face value per share
(5) The cost price to licensed institution.
(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.
(7) Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has not
declared dividend for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.

b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures and bonds
of other companies

(1) Name of the company

(2) Rate of Interest

(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.

(4) Face value per debenture/bond.

(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond

(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond

(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value
The financial institution shall recognize impairment loss if any on the investment instruments
measured at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss shall be as per requirement of
NFRSs.
The financial institution shall recognize, meas re, present and disclpse the investment instruments

as per the requiremezgl{sy
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4.14

4.15

4.16

Current Tax

This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income tax
liabilities or other tax liabilities to the taxing authorities.

Investment In Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank in its
subsidiaries shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements. Since, the
investment amount is eliminated in consolidation process, no amount shall be presented under
group financial statements.

Investment In Associates

Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control over the
financial and operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates shall be presented
in this head under this account head.

Investment Properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non-
current assets held for sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under this
account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as non-banking assets by the
Bank but not sold.

Property and equipment.

All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and fittings, office
equipment and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments and capital work in
progress owned by the licensed institution shall be presented under this head.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated,
trade mark etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward
of unused tax losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Other Assets

This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above. Assets held
for sale, non-banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted deposits with central
banks, accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments and deposit are some
of the items to be included under this head.

Liabilities and Equity side

4.17

4.18

Due to bank and financial institutions

The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks
and financial institution shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing,
interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount
due to bank and financial institution shall be presented under this account head.

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable
to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort,
sale and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap,
forward foreign exchange contract ete. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall
be presented under this head.

Deposits from customers

All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be presented
under this account head.

Borrowing

All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing from
Nepal Rastra Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from Nepal
Government, borrowing from other domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign bank and
financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

Current Tax Liabilities

The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties shall be
included under this head.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision for redundancy, provision for
onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation, credit
commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under this account head. Followings are the
additional clarification on accounts presented under this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy

It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based on a dismissal
plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination benefits like voluntary
retirement scheme shall be presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring

Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations or
relocation in a region, changes in management structure, fundamental reorganizations that have a
material effect on the nature and focus of the bank’s operations etc. The provision of restructuring
that is recognized as per the requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head

(c¢) Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be presented
under this account head.

(d) Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
licensed institution from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation
under the contract. The provision amount that is recognized for onerous contract as per NFRSs
shall be presented under this heading,.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of
taxable temporary differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax liabilities that are
recognized as per requirement of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head.

Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head in this
account. Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilitigs
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4.26

4.27

gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave, cash settled share based payment
liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, Interest payable on deposit
and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall be presented under this account head.

Debt securities Issued

Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this broad
account head.

Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt securities
issued and other creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable preference share,
subordinated notes issued, borrowings ete.

Share Capital

The amount of paid-up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under this head.
Amount credited in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the accumulated profit and
reserves shall also be disclosed under this heading. This shall include paid up amount of ordinary
share capital and equity component of preference share capital. The convertible preference shares
which include an option for the holder of the shares to convert the preferred shares into a fixed
number of ordinary shares at any time after a predetermined date, irredeemable preference share
and perpetual debt instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per
NFRSs as equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

Reserve

Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or retained
earnings in connection with maintaining reserves or created from any other process. Normally,
amount shall be credited to this heading having debited the accumulated profit and while using
these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall have to be debited. Followings are the additional
clarification of account head under reserve.

(a) General Reserve

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from
appropriation of net profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be
included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount in
general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be required in order to use the amount in this
reserve.

(b) Exchange Equalization reserve

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned foreign exchange
revaluation gain on foreign currency other than India currency has to allocate 25 percent of such
revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any
amount allocated to exchange equalization reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial
Institutions Act, shall be presented under this heading.

(¢) Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that
are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive
income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those
financial assets shall be presented under this account head.

(d) Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets,
Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a
cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due
to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

(e) Capital Reserv fﬁ
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The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which
shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to
non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind,
capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc should be presented under this heading.

(f) Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special
instruction of NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting
retained earning account shall be presented under this heading.

(g) Capital Redemption Reserve
This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable
Non-Convertible Preference Shares.

(h) Dividend Equalization Fund

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during
the year of profit making may be transferred shall be presented under this account head. Dividend
may be distributed by debiting this account with the approval of the Board of Directors and
endorsed by the General meeting.

(i) Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is created for the
raising capital of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to make up minimum paid up capital
amount shall be presented under this account head.

(j) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit shall be
presented under this account head.

(k) Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's investments
as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(1) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee
obligations shall be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per the
Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not be regarded as
free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account
head. The amount allocated to this reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received
in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance
as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSs), amount equals to deferred

tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized
under NFRSs ete,

(n) Other Reserve Fund i

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) shall be presented
under this by disclosing accounting heads.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not attributable
to the parent company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the subsidiary's financial
results with its own. The bank who has a subsidiary and consolidates the financial statement of
subsidiary in its own shall present the equity portion of the submdlaly that are attributable to the
shareholders other than the bank under thi§ account head.

~




Share Premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under
this heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for
distribution of cash dividend.

Retained Earning

The accumulated profits which have not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed
back in the licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the
shareholders shall be presented under this heading.

4.28 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

Where the Company undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customer for guarantees issued
for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included
in the financial statement as contingent liabilities. Where the Company has confirmed its intention
to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future
guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Company has not made payments. Such
commitment amounts are also presented under Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss
Account

Interest Income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This heading shall
include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment
securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and and cash equivalent, due from Nepal
Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.

Interest expenses

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The interest
accrued on deposits collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained, subordinated liabilities,
amount due to bank and financial institutions, due to NRB etc. shall be presented under this
heading.

Fees and commission income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers. Fee
income arises on the execution of a significant act completed or from provision of services like asset
management, portfolio management, management advisory and service fees ete. Loan
documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee, commitment fee, card issuance and
renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment banking fee, asset management
fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit, commission on guarantee, locker rental income, etc.
should be presented under this heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the
effective interest rate on the financial assets are included in the measurement of the effective
interest rate and shall not be recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized
in profit or loss account as income.

Fees and commission expense

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be presented
under this account head. This account head shall include card related fees, guarantee commission,
brokerage expenses etc. The fees and commission expense that are integral to the effective interest
rate on the financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate and shall
not be recognized as expense.

Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes
all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair
value of trading assets and liabilities shall be presented under this

P i




4-34
4.35
4.36
4.37
4.38

4.39
4.40

4.41

)

Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads above shall
be booked and presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange revaluation gain,
gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities, gain/loss
on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating lease
income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, finance income of finance lease etc.

Impairment charge/ (reversal) for the loans and other losses

Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented under this
account head. It shall include impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan
and advances to bank and financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank and
financial institutions, property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, investment
properties etc.

Personnel expenses

All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses covered
under this head include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident
fund, training expenses, uniform expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRSs,
cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Other operating expense

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented
under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head shall include office
administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' emoluments,
remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure
cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non-financial
assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc,

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life. Depreciation measured and recognized as per NFRSs on property and equipment, and
investment properties, and amortization of intangible assets shall be presented under this account
head.

Non-operating income

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions shall
be presented under this head. The income/expense covered under this account head shall include
loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc

Income tax expenses

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under this
account head. This account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax
expense/deferred tax income.

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income :

Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments

Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the changes in
fair value is required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be recognized and
presented under this account head. The changes may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss
in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be deducted from the fair value reserve.

Changes in revaluation reserve
Changes in revalued amount of property gnd equipment, and intangi
under this account head. <
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5.1,

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value
(losses) of the derivative is recognized and presented in Other comprehensive income under this
account head. The changes may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with
the relevant NFRSs shall also be deducted from the fair value reserve.

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans
Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income and shall be presented under this account head.

Income tax relating to these items

The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be presented
under this head.

Disclosures and Additional Information

Risk Management

Introduction and Overview

In Compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board of
Company has established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at the
date of this report, the Risk Management Committee comprised of following:

S.No  Member of Risk Management Committee Designation

1 Mr. Ram Chandra Devkota Coordinator

2 Mr. Ram Krishna Chaulagain Member

3 Mr. Prem Sagar Napit Member

4 Mr. Rabindra Shrestha Member secretary

The Committees meet least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews the
fundamental prudential risks.

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process
of risk management is critical to the Company's continuing profitability and each individual within
the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

Stress Testing

Stress Testing is a valuable risk management tool which tries to quantify the size of potential losses
under certain stress events. A stress event is an exceptional but credible event to which a bank’s
portfolio is exposed. As a part of its risk measurement mechanism, the Bank puts an emphasis on
evaluating where the Bank stands under stressful market conditions. It helps to provide
information on the kinds of conditions under which strategies or position, the Bank would be most
vulnerable and thus, strategies are devised such that such circumstance doesn’t arise and/or to
ensure least impact upon the Bank from such scenarios even if they do occur.

Governance Framework

Risk Management Committee of the Company has formed to review the credit risk, Market risk,
and liquidity risk of the institution.

The Company’s risk management framework is established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the institution to set 3 priate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Through it, the any steks to efficiently manage cyedit, market and liquidity risks which




5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

|

arise directly through the Institution’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and
reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking. As part of this
framework, the institution uses a set of principles that describes its risk management culture. The
institution, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Major risk area and mitigation mechanism is as given below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Company in accordance with agreed
terms. Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Hence
overall strategy as well as significant policies must be reviewed by the board regularly. Further,
Senior Management is responsible for implementing the Company’s credit risk management
strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit
risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Market Risk

The Company’s foreign exchange risk stems from foreign exchange position taking and commercial
dealing. All foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury. Fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates can have a significant impact on a Company's financial position. The Company has
adopted measures to appropriately hedge the risks that arise while carrying out international trade
transactions. Code of ethics for treasury dealers is in place to ensure that professionalism and
confidentiality are maintained, and ethical dealing practices observed. The Company treasury
dealers have gained exposure to international markets as well in addition to having undergone
appropriate trainings.

Liquidity Risk

The Company has set internal risk appetite in terms of managing its liquidity risk. Adequate
cushion is maintained in terms of liquidity. Asset-liability management is also a part of the Treasury
functions and it guided by the Company’s Asset Liability Management policy. This is further
reviewed by the Company’s ALCO and Risk Management Committee.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on an undiscounted cash
flow basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when
liquidity outgo arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the
business.

Figure in NPR ‘oco0

Particulars  1-90 Days = 91-180 Days | 181-365 Days . Over1Year ! Total
' Total Assets 1,738,971 290,083 647,639 3,132,974 | 5,809,667
| Total Liabilities 772,511 302,010 1,505,508 2,089,084 4,669,113
Operational Risk

Operational risk is inherent in all business activities. Whilst risks can never be eliminated, at Best
Finance we follow several procedures and practices like Business Continuity Plan, Whistle Blowing
— A Culture of Speaking Up to manage and mitigate preserve and create value of our business.

We manage our operational risks through standardization of internal processes and monitoring
mechanisms. Data security, dual control, periodic departmental reviews and quality assessment are
some of the tools that are used to manage risks.

Critical risk areas are discussed at the management level as well as Risk Management Committee
which updates issues with priority to the Company’s Board to necessary actions and strategic
directions.

Compliance and Assurance / Operations Risk Unit

Recognizing the importance of Operations Risk in terms of managing day-to-day business, we have

a full-fledged OperationalRisk under the Risk Management Unit. )
I E .\.\.."r ..
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Capital Management

The capital management approach of the company is driven by its desire to maintain a strong
capital base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital
requirements at all times.

As Capital is the centerpiece of the company’s performance matrix, a sound capital management
forms the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the company delivers on
its objective of maximizing the shareholder’s value. The senior management of the company is
engaged and responsible for prudent capital management at all times. In compliance with the
regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base as prescribed by the Central Bank, the
company is comfortable in meeting the minimum capital requirements and is strongly positioned
to meet the performance benchmarks.

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the
Company in relation to strategic objectives. The management shall review and understand the
nature and level of various risks that the Company is confronting during different business
activities and how this risk relates to capital levels and accordingly implement sound risk
management framework specifying control measures to tackle each risk factor.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components
Amount in (NPR 'oo0)
S.N. Particulars Amount
a Paid up Capital 854,817
b Share Premium / Capital Reserve 14,948
c Proposed Bonus Shares -
d Statutory General Reserve 230,005
e Retained Earnings (226,457)
f Un-audited Current Year Cumulative Profit =
g Capital Adjustment Reserve 3,629
h Other Free Reserves .
i Less: Deferred Tax Assets =
j Less: Intangible Assets -
k Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests -
Core (Tier-1) Capital 885.942
ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
Amount in (NPR ‘000)
S.N. | Particulars Amount
a Subordinated Term Debt
b General Loan Loss Provision 63,662
¢ Exchange Equalization Reserve
d Investment Adjustment Reserve
e Other Reserve
Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 63,662

111. Total qualifying capital

S. N.

Amount (NPR ‘000)—‘

otﬁ'

| Particulars

£
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ii.

iv.

v.

b)

A Core Capital 885,942
B Supplementary Capital 63,662
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 949,604

Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company as per Basel II as on Ashad 2080 is 18.69% & 20.03% of
Core Capital Fund and Total Capital Fund respectively.

Summary of Company’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable

The Company formulates an annual business plan, with prescribed plan for every business function
including deposits, lending, product developments and customer service. These plans are made in
consideration of the competitive environment and business sustainability as well as overall risk
inherent in banking business.

Capital Plan is a part of the Company’s business plan. Capital Plan is formulated to fund the planned
business growth and to meet regulatory requirements on minimum capital and capital adequacy.
Result of the scenario-based approach is used as input to the capital contingency plan. The financial
consequences following various scenarios and potential events/actions are estimated and adequacy
of capital in those scenarios is tested. The results are discussed broadly at senior management level
and in board meetings.

Summary of the terms, conditions, and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments
Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR
100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Risk Exposures

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk
Amount in NPR 'ooo

S.N. Risk Weighted Exposure Amount
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 4,356,309
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 143,292
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 4,799,601
Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of
w487 gross income. 15,757
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not
SRP6.42(9) | gatisfactory. Add 3% of RWE 179,984
SRP 6.42 (10) Egsélit;;l if;vlgwédisclosure requirement has not been achieved. 44,996
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Company’s adjustments of Pillar
m) . 4,740,338

Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk
Amount in NPR 'o00

S.N = Risk Classification RWE
A | Claims on Govt. and Central Bank =
B | Claims on other Financial Entities =
C | Claims on Banks 35,384
D Claims on Corporate and Securities Firm 329,319
e Claims on Regu!at(r/y RE@I Bortfolio 1,001,441

07




f | Claims secured by Residential Properties 413,860
g Claims secured by Commercial Real Estate E
h Past due Claims 265,226
i High Risk Claims 1,401,266
J | Other Assets 865,545
K Off balance sheet items 44,270
Total 4,356,311

o Mp

/’
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d)

5.3,
5.3.1

Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net)

Current Year
Particulars
Gross NPAs | Net NPAs
Restructured / Reschedule Loans - -
Sub Standard Loans 42,213,705 31,809,135
Doubtful Loans 51,399,065 26,913,162
Loss 32,250,249 =
Total NPAs 125,863,019 | 58,722,298

Operating Segment Information

General Information

The Company has identified its segments on the basis of its geographical business presence in seven
provinces of the country.

Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities

Amount in NPR full figure

Particulars Province 1 Madhesh Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Total
ven

E;em:fiuf;:?mem 10,111,054 1,225,457 | 326,395,891 39,779,627 213,963,556 591,475,586
Intersegment - b i ] )
revenues
Net revenues 10,111,054 1,225,457 | 326,395,891 39,779,627 | 213,963,556 | 591,475,586
Interest revenue (a) 10,111,054 1,225,457 326,395,891 39,779,627 213,963,556 591,475,586
Interest expense (b) 816,525 2,097,291 | 209,650,652 57,398,893 180,607,446 | 450,570,808
Net interest
r;,e,me (a-b) 9,294,529 (871,834) | 116,745,239 | (17,619,266 ) 33,356,110 | 140,904,778
?;%ﬁ;:ﬂgg e 1,170,715 1,196,490 13,537,096 2,970,675 5,934,445 24,809,421
Segment profit
ﬂoﬁ; befgrg ta;ﬁ 3,049,995 (5,842,667) 75,108,000 (33,503,562) (29,415,034)
all?szts il 2,981,619 250,159 53,031,228 6,225,778 68,314,104 130,802,890
Segment assets 189,124,463 29,211,387 3,659,808,454 326,555,042 1,546,737,468 | 5,751,436,814
Se nt ,751,436,8
liaﬁrill‘i‘:ies 15,919,579 54,848,536 | 3295:613,872 585,206,435 | 1,799,848,391 | 2751430514

5-3.2 Reconciliation of reportable, segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments 591,475,586

Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity's revenue 591,475,586

Profit or Loss -

Total profit or loss for reportable segments 9,396,731

Other profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits

Profit before income tax 9,396,731
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5.6.

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

5,751,436,814

Other assets

Total assets

5,751,436,814

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments

5,751,436,814

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

5,751,436,814

Information about product and services

The Company offers different ranges of banking products and services across all operating segments.
All branches in each segment are equipped to provide services of each type to customers through
themselves or through other branches/ central units under same or different segment. However, some
branches may be operated to provide specialized banking service based on management’s assessment
of the market niche.

Information about geographical areas

The operating segments identified above are based on geographical presence of the branches in seven
provinces of the country.

Domestic Revenue
A Province 1 10,111,054
Madhesh 1,225,457
Bagmati 326,395,891
Gandaki 39,779,627
Lumbini 213,963,556
Karnali =
Mahakali =
B Foreign =
Total 591,475,586

Information about major customers
Revenue from single external customer does not exceed 10% or more of entity's revenue.

Share options and share based payment

There is no share-based payment made by the Company.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Contingent Liabilities
The company has tax litigation of NPR 19,987,287 and liabilities for guarantee issued of NPR 200,000
is also accounted under this head as presented in schedule 4.28.

Commitments:
The company has undrawn limit of overdraft amounting NPR 121,014,000.

Related Partir Disclosures

The Company identifies its Board of Directors, Key Management Personnel comprising of the CEO and
other executive officials and its Subsidiary Companies as the related parties under the requirements of

NAS 24. The related parties of the Company are listed below:
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5.7. Board Member Allowances and Facilities
All members of the Board of Directors are non-executive directors, and no executive compensation is
paid to the directors. The directors are paid Meeting Fees for their attendance in meeting of the Board
of Directors and other Board Level Committees. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is paid NPR
4,000 per meeting attended while other members of the board receive NPR 3,500 per meeting
attended. In addition, the directors are reimbursed with Magazine and Article expenses of NPR 1,500
per month.
The details of the compensations paid to the directors are as under:
Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars This Year (NPR) Previous Year (NPR)
Board Meeting Fee 288,000 499,500
Audit Committee Fee 49,000 63,000
Risk Management Committee fee 28,000 49,000
Money Laundering Prevention Committee 28,000 28,000
Human Resource Committee Fee 10,500 10,500
Other Board expenses 295,891 207,548
Total 699,391 857,548
5.7.1 Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel
Compensations paid to Key Management Personnel (which includes CEO and other executive officials)
during the fiscal year is presented below. In addition, other non-monetary perquisites are provided to
the Key Management Personnel as per the Company’s Human Resource Policy and employment terms
and conditions.
Amount in NPR'ooo
5 This Year Previous Year
Particulars (NPR ‘000) (NPR ‘000)
Salary and Allowances
CEO 5,560 5,578
Other Key Management Personnel 2,056 1,939
Total 7,616 7,517
Other Benefits*
Current CEO 1,309 490
Previous CEO 2 -
Other Key Management Personnel 448 252
Total 1,757 742
Post-Employment Benefits** - -
*Other Benefits include Staff Bonus paid out of profit for previous year.
“*Post-employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis for all employees.
5.8. Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:
The Company has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.
5.9. Events after reporting date

Particulars Relationship

Khim Lal Paudyal Director

Laxmi Shrestha Director

Ram Chandra Devkota Director

Ram Krishna Chaulagain Director

Sri Ram Shrestha Director

Umesh Singh Bhandari Chief Executive Officer
Shailendra Bade Shrestha Key Management Personnel

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting
and/or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in
the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with
possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

o
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There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2022 till the signing of this
financial statement.

5.10. Investment Property (Non-Banking Assets)

Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown under investment property. It has been recognized at lower
of fair value of collateral or amount due at the time of assuming of NBA. During the year new NBA of
NPR. 105,469,116 has been booked. NPR 75,532,415 of NBA was sold during the period.

Amount in NPR Full Figure
Borrower Name Date of 31 Ashadh 2080 | 32 Ashadh 2079
assuming NBA

Rajesh Kumar Chaurasiya 2059.08.06 2,559,952 2,550,952
Usha Shrestha 2069.02.26 7,185,061 7,185,061
Mohamad Miya Hajam 2074 02.30 15,120,065 15,120,065
Roshan Kumar Gauttam 2074.04.28 4,197,000 4,197,000
Devendra/Nirmaya Bhandari 2076.04.01 - 15,192,964
Tara Bhandari 2077.12.25 - 31,470,000
Aarati Shrestha 2077.12.25 2,082,650 2,082,650
Srijana Gyawali/Sabita Bhattarai 2077.12.31 3,884,455 3,884,455
Lahanu Dagaura Tharu 2077.12.31 4,618,024 4,618,025
Mini King Fashion Wear 2078.03.02 - 7,064,651
Himthalo Construction 2078.03.27 1,642,950 » 1,642,950
Prem & Puja Kirana Pasal 2078.06.31 1,743,262 1,743,262
Neell Kirana Pasal 2078.06.31 1,877,092 1,877,002
Bishambar Khatiwoda 2078.06.31 9,524,188 9,524,188
D&P Brothers Suppliers 2078.06.31 4,450,269 4,450,269
Birendra Chaudhary 2078.06.31 645,094 645,094
Shree Jay Hanuman Veli Crusher Udhy 2078.06.31 3,149,672 3,149,672
Jagkiran Construction 2078.06.31 31,155,000 31,155,000
Kaji Sun Chandi Pasal 2078.06.31 7,664,190 7,664,190
Nande Sunar 2078.06.24 1,532,000 1,532,000
Saraswati Thapa Bhandari 2078.06.22 10,740,000 10,740,000
Chakra Bahadur Thapa Magar 2078.06.22 1,347,415 1,347,415
Trikashi Gurung 2078.09.11 810,000 810,000
Nathu Tharu 2078.12.29 1,371,643 1,371,643
Om Nama Traders 2078.12.29 8,000,000 8,000,000
Ram Bilash Chaudhary 2079.03.31 : 1,290,351
Ramsamuja Shutting 2079.03.31 2,152,011 2,152,011
Sushmita Dudh Dairy Udhyog 2079.06.31 2,312,659 -
Nanda Shahi 2079.06.31 5,102,829 -
Oli Khadhya Suppliers 2079.09.30 2,057,841 -
Ram Chandra Kohar 2079.09.30 1,675,295 -
Nirman Bewasai Farm 2079.09.30 2,880,000 -
Tek Bahadur Sunari 2079.09.30 969,216 -
Punam Dangali Hotel 2079.12.28 4,540,073 =
Prakriti Agro 2079.12.30 20,454,881 -
Samyog Textile 2079.12.30 3,031,611 .
Promi Enterprises 2080.03.31 11,289,324 -
Dharma Raj Agro Center 2080.03.31 4,198,948 :
Langdhali Khaja ghar 2080.03.31 5,315,507 g
Aarav Jewelers 2080.03.31 ~ 2,780,610 -
Puja Shreya Trade & Suppliers 2080.03.31 6,077,061 -
Aaradhya Food Product 2080.03.31 3,175,349 =
Mina Kumari Damai 2080.03.31 1,430,473 -
Tamanna Malla Store 2080.03.31 3,667,799 s
Shyam Sundar Lodh 2080.03.31 3,995,192 -
Total 213,306,661 183,369,960

-




5.11. Earnings per share
The Company measures earning per share based on the earning attributable to the equity shareholders
for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant
period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.
Particulars Units Year ended | Year ended
16-Jul-2023 16-Jul-22
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR 'oo0 8,627 136,125
Weightgd average of qumber of equity shares used in In 0oo 8,338 8,289
computing basic earnings per share (b)
?a?sg;: and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each Rs 1.03 16.42
Revised basis earning per share Rs 1.03 16.42
As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS
and diluted EPS are equal for the period presented. Revised basic earnings per share has been adjusted
retrospectively calculated based on para 64 of NAS 33.
5.12. Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)
There are no proposed distributions during the year.
5.13. Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years amounts to as follows.
Amount in NPR. 'o00
. As at As at
Particulars 16 July 2023 16 July 2022
Not collected for more than 5 years 595 595
Not collected up to 5 years = -
Total 595 595
5.14. Merger and acquisition and it’s Tax
No Merger and acquisition have taken in the years presented. The organization has paid Rs
22.,040,429.70 Bargain Purchase Gain Tax in FY 2080-81. Bargain Purchase Gain was account for Rs
73,468,098 in FY 2075-76 on first time adoption of the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.
5.15. Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
There are no further disclosures to be made as per NFRS requirements.
5.16. Non-performing assets

The Company’s non-performing assets stood at 3.48 % as at balance sheet date. The total non-
performing assets as at Balance sheet date is NPR 125,863,019.

Amount in NPR Full Figure
Loan Category Current year Previous Year
Perform'gg Tenn 3,493,766,542 3,164,668,939
Pass Loans 2,967,261,436 2,956,768,380
Watchlist Loans 526,505,105 207,900,559
125,863,019

Non-performing Loans i 86,656,104
Restructured/

Rescheduled Loans > :
Substandard Loans 42,213,705 44,537,008
Doubtful Loans AT BN 51,399,065 7,281,744
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Loss Loans 32,250,249 34,837,352
Gross Loans and Advances 3,619,629,560 3,251,325,043

5.17. Loans Written Off

The Company does not have any loans written off during the year FY 2079-80.

5.18. Concentration of Deposits, Loans & Advances and Contingents

Amount in NPR Million
Ad:r‘:na:::sssind Deposit_s & Non-Funded
Particulars Bills Purchased ROTETWInES
CY PY CY PY CY PY
Total Amount Outstanding (Gross) 3,620 3,251 4,391 3,823 - -
Highest Exposure of a Single Unit 50 67 60 60 - -
Concentration of exposure 1.38% 2.06% 1.37% 1.57% - -

* CY= Current Year, PY = Previous Year

For the calculation of concentration, loans and advances is total loans extended to the customers except

staff loans and interest accruals on loans and the deposits is total deposits from the customers
excluding interest payables.

Single Obligor Limit and Sector-wise Limit (Directive No. 3) for both funded and non-funded are
within the limit as prescribed by NRB directives.
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5.19.

Principal Financial Indicators

;;m};?;r;entage of Net Profit/Gross % 20% 47% 63% 75% 4%
2. Earnings Per Share NPR 12.06 9.38 9.88 16.42 1.03
3. Market Value per Share NPR 101 96.00 426.00 377.50 353
4. Price Earnings Ratio ! Ratio 8.37 10.23 43.13 22.99 342.72
5. Dividend on share capital (Bonus s N N } }
share + Cash dividend) %
6. Cash Dividend on share capital % T - iy 5 =
derg:aecr: : ;i%cfﬁzi th?n 211;:5& % 20.61% 17.29% 11.88% 11.57% 13.32%
g'pf‘rl:jgiogygig:é’ ;:;SESK ol % 51.98% 56.24% 54.96% 50.39% 53.88%
e L W TN oo oA 7N wosey
10. Exchange Fluctuation Gain/Total _ = = ] _
Income %
11. Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses % 18.83% 10.65% 12.81% 19-4_,2% 1.24%
12. Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 5.37% 3.88% 3.85% 5.12% 0.25%
13. Net Profit/ Total Assets % 3.02% 2.24% 2.05% 2.84% 0.16%
14. Total Credit/Deposit % 76.36% 85.35% 71.39% 88.79% 86.39%
;55.53‘:35‘(&1 Operating Expenses/Total " 3.09% 3.46% G 5.21% 2.85%
16. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk
Weightage Assets
a. Core Capital % 31.03% 27.97% 22.38% 20.09% 18.69.%
b. Supplementary Capital % 1.31% 1.25% 1.03% 1.28% 1.34%
c. Total Capital Fund % 32.34% 29.22% 23.01% 21.37% 20.03%
17. Liquidity (CRR) % 5.59% 3.34% 3:47% 3.36% 4.28%
;iﬁ: Rpeforiing Loans/ Totl % 18.46% 15.00% 12.83% 3.07% 3.48%
é%.rr;?ilghted Average Interest Rate " 4.48% 5.57% 4.09% £.27% AR
20. Base Rate % 15.48% 12.50% 10.95% 13.75% 14.99%
. I I
22, Book Net worth Rs in Lacs NPR 7,246 8,499 9,325 11,890 11,802
23. Total Shares Number 8,100,158 8,289,138 8,289,138 8,289,138 8,548,168
24. Net Worth Per Share NPR 141.81 102.53 112.49 143.58 138.07
25. Total Employees Number 122 121 121 131 135

5.20. Valuation Hierarchy

The following tables demonstrates the valuation hierarchy of Company’s Assets and Liabilities. This
fair value may differ from the actual amount that may be received or paid on settlement, realization or
maturity of those Financial Assets and Liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are
not based on observable market data.
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5.21.

e -

Disclosure Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

|As  onlAson As  on|Ason | As on  Ason
131032080 ...!M33?9.3r.2979... | 31.03.2080 32.03.2079 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
§__Q1_10tequuityShares 191,248,829 299,054,900 - - - -

- Unquoted equity | 17549,200 | 15,438,900

 Particulars

Reserves

5.21.1 General Reserve

5.21.2

5.21.3

5.21.4

The movement in general reserve during the year is as follows:

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance 230,966,265 201,545,428
Transfer as per BAFIA 8,039,167 29,420,837
Closing balance 239,005,432 230,966,265

As required by Section 44 of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 (BAFIA), 20% of the current
year's net profit amounting NPR 1,725,469 and 20% of reversal of fair value reserves of the equity
instrument (measured through OCI) disposed during the year amounting to NPR 63,13,698 has been
transferred to General Reserve.

Fair Value Reserve

Opening balance of Fair value Reserve as on 31st Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022) stands at NPR 124,343,310.
During the year, gain on sale of investment amounting NPR 31,568,492 net of income tax is deducted
from Fair Value Reserve. Available for sale investments are marked to market on a regular basis and
the difference is adjusted through OCI reserve which amounts to NPR 52,106,270 net of taxes.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per the NRB directive no. 6.16 on Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company has allocated 1% of
the net profit of current fiscal year for CSR activities.

Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening CSR Fund
PEIDG 2,100,882 992,580
Add: 1% profit this year 86,273 1,361,254
Less: CSR Expenses (680,452) (252,952)
Closing CSR Fund 1,506,703 2,100,882

Employees Training Fund

NRB Directive 6 requires BFI to incur expenses towards employee training and development equivalent

to at least 3% of the preceding year's total staff expenses which amounts to NPR 2,777,031. Total
training expenses of this year amounted to NPR 2,186,357. .

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Particulars Cl;.f:rnt Pr;;ﬂ;us
Opening Fund 22,405 5,039
Add: 3% of Last year staff expenses 2,777,031 2,332,697
Actual Staff training Expenses (2,186,357) (2,315,331)
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Closing Training fund 613,079

22,405

5.21.5 Other Reserve

Other reserve includes actuary reserve, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund and Capital Adjustment

Reserve

Other Reserve

Actuary CSR Employee CaPlta] Total

R R Training Fund Adjustment

eserve eserve aining Ruseive

Opening balance (193,953) | 2,100,882 22,405 | 3,628,619 | 5,557,953
Transfer to Reserve
during the year (5,070,044) 86,273 2,777,031 - | (2,206,740)
Transfer from Reserve
during the year (680,452) (2,186,357) - | (2,866,809)
Closing balance (5,263,997) 1,506,703 613,079 3,628,619 484,404

5.22 Regulatory Reserve

During the year regulatory reserve has been credited for NPR 43,601,316, Movement in regulatory
reserve during 2079-80 is presented below:

Movement During the year
z Opening Addition Reversal during Closing

Particutars Balance 79-80 during 79-80 79-80 Balance 79-80
Investment Property 115,523,075 18,860,121 ) 134,383,196
Interest Income 12,467,451 17,498,275.56 _ 29,065,727

Actuarial Loss/(gain) _ S 542 B16.60 ” 5
on Gratuity 77,07 7,242,919. 7,519,995
Bargain purchase Gain 73,468,098 - - 73,468,098
Deferred Tax Assets - - - -
Total 201,735,700 43,601,316 - 245,337,016
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5:23

5.24

325

5.26.

5.27.

5.28.

5.29,

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

During the year Property Plant and Equipment of NPR 64,458,561 was added and NPR 11,109,245 was
revalued/Adjusted. There was no disposal of PPE which is presented in schedule 4.13.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Other software of NPR 1,346,333 was purchased and is presented in schedule 4.14.

Retained Earnings

Opening Retained earnings was NPR (204,414,935). Opening Retained earnings was restated by NPR
(10,600,690) during the year of which NPR (111,48,723) relates to adjustment due to deferred tax. The
remaining NPR 548,033 relates to lease liability for the previous year. NPR 680,452 of CSR expenses
has been credited during the year in the account. Retained earnings are debited by NPR 43,601,316 and
charged to Regulatory Reserve.

Bargain Purchase Gain Tax

Company has deposited tax on bargain purchase gain (originated at the time of acquiring Synergy
Finance Limited) of NPR 22,040,429.70 after the audit period. The bargain purchase gain accounted for
in books was NPR 73,468,098 and is presented in regulatory reserve in section 5.22.1.

Right of Use of assets (ROU), Lease liability and expenses

During the year addition in Right of Use of assets amounts to NPR 27,801,255. The depreciation charged
on such assets was NPR. 11,387,796 and is presented in 4.38 of SCI. Likewise lease liability added during
the year amounts to NPR 27,80 1,255. Interest expenses charged in SCI amount to NPR 6,143,048 and
are presented in 4.30. Reconciliation of ROU and lease liability is presented below.

Right of Use of assets
- AL 3 . Depreciation .
Opening | Addition79-80 | Adjustment/revaluation Hhosas Closing
60,912,504 27,801,255 (5,304,214) 11,387,796 72,021,839
Lease liability
; e Adjustment/ Interest Lease A
Opening | Addition 79-80 revaluation Expenses Payment Closing
65,808,820 27,801,255 (5,852,247) 6,143,048 13,788,805 80,112,071
Deferred Tax

During the year NPR 111,48,723 has been restated in financial statements and is presented under
Retained Earnings in statement of changes in equity and schedule 4.15.

Non-Operating Expense

During the fiscal Year 2079-80, NPR 4,000,000 has been booked as non-operating expense in schedule
4.40. Initially land of borrower was booked as NBA and later on it was sold to another party. After such
sale of NBA, the family member of original owner of land file as legal suit for “ansa” and court issue
decision on favor of such family member. Due to such order, the buyer of such NBA get less area of lund
than the area of land sold by the finance. Later on, such buyer of NBA also filed case against the finance
and the court decide to pay NPR 4,000,000 to such buyer as compensation. Hence the amount presented
in non-operating expense is related with compensation paid to the buyer of NBA.
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